


  ANNEX A 
 

 
ANSWERS TO QUERIES FROM PROSPECTIVE BIDDERS AND INTERESTED PARTICIPANTS 

 

 Date Prospective Bidder/ 
Interested 
Participant 

Question Submitted PBAC Response 

1 2/28/2013 Samsung C&T Would the Construction Contractor be required to submit any 
Development Experience under the Technical Qualification 
Requirements? If so, would the Construction Contractor need to fill 
forms QD-4A, QD-4B, QD-5, and QD-11? 

Please refer to the response to Query No. 22 in 
SBB No. 06-2013. 
 

2 2/28/2013 Samsung C&T Who’s the Development Experience, Construction Contractor or 
Prospective Bidder (other than the Construction Contractor) fulfills 
Section 2.a.5. as stated in page 13? 

Please refer to the response to Query No. 23 in 
SBB No. 06-2013. 
 

3 2/28/2013 Samsung C&T What is the relationship between the Consortium Member proposing 
the "Development Experience" and the Construction Contractors 
fulfilling the requirement? Should this role be undertaken by the same 
party or affiliated companies?  

Please refer to the response to Query No. 24 in 
SBB No. 06-2013. 

4 2/28/2013 Samsung C&T Could the Construction Contractor undertake an investment role? 
What are the restrictions or lock-up rules applicable in this case? 

Please refer to the response to Query No. 25 in 
SBB No. 06-2013. 
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5 2/28/2013 Samsung C&T Would the Construction Contractor be required to undertake a 33 
1/3% equity interest of both voting and non-voting shares in the 
Project SPV if it, the Construction Contractor, is a consortium member 
and also provides the Development Experience? 

Please refer to the response to Query No. 26 in 
SBB No. 06-2013. 

6 2/28/2013 Samsung C&T Could the Construction Contractor undertake an equity interest below 
the 33 1/3% and also propose the "Development Experience”? 

Please refer to the response to Query No. 27 in 
SBB No. 06-2013. 

7 2/28/2013 Samsung C&T Would a consortium member undertaking an equity interest less than 
33 1/3% not nominate its Development Experience while still being 
proposed as a Construction Contractor be permitted per ITPB Section 
V5 and V6, pages 27 and 28, clauses 2.a.2 and 2.a.5? 

Please refer to the response to Query No. 28 in 
SBB No. 06-2013. 

8 2/28/2013 Samsung C&T Would a consortium member being proposed as a Construction 
Contractor but undertaking an equity interest below 33 1/3% be 
subject to any lock-up rules during the qualification period? What rule 
would that be?  

Please refer to the response to Query No. 29 in 
SBB No. 06-2013. 

9 2/28/2013 Samsung C&T Would a consortium member being proposed as a Construction 
Contractor but undertaking an equity interest below 33 1/3% be 
subject to any lock-up rules during the concession period? What rule 
would that be?  

Please refer to the response to Query No. 30 in 
SBB No. 06-2013. 

10 2/28/2013 Samsung C&T Which licenses does the RFQ refer to?  Does this refer to a local license 
or to an international equivalent? 

Please refer to the response to Query No. 2 in 
SBB No. 04-2013. 
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11 2/28/2013 Samsung C&T Could companies fulfilling the Design and Engineering Experience 
submit along with difference consortia?  

Please refer to the response to Query No. 32 in 
SBB No. 06-2013. 

12 2/28/2013 Samsung C&T Does the 10 years of experience relate to the minimum time for the 
key personnel in the solicited role?  

Please refer to the response to Query No. 33 in 
SBB No. 06-2013. 

13 2/28/2013 Samsung C&T Could projects which have been managed simultaneously be 
considered as "eligible experience”? 

Please refer to the response to Query No. 34 in 
SBB No. 06-2013. 

14 2/28/2013 Samsung C&T Would bridges be considered as infrastructure and therefore eligible 
projects?  

Please refer to the response to Query No. 35 in 
SBB No. 06-2013. 

15 2/28/2013 Samsung C&T Would a project be considered as eligible if it is on-going?  Please refer to the response to Query No. 11 in 
SBB No. 04-2013. 
 

16 2/28/2013 Samsung C&T Which update version does this paragraph refer to?  Please refer to the response to Query No. 37 in 
SBB No. 06-2013. 
 

17 2/28/2013 Samsung C&T Which aeronautical as well as non-aeronautical sources would the 
winning consortium be entitled to? 

Please refer to the response to Query No. 38 in 
SBB No. 06-2013. 
 

18 2/27/2013 Premier Airport 
Group 

In view of the latest Special Bid Bulletin No. 04-2013, requiring listed 
foreign companies to submit the latest "Submission of Quarterly Public 
Ownership Report/top 100 Shareholders Report" or equivalent 
document, please confirm that if no such equivalent document exists 
as there is NO public authority or entity in the foreign country that 
keeps a record of shareholders in a listed company, a certification from 
a corporate secretary or duly authorized representative of the foreign 
company that no such document exists, alongside its audited financial 
report showing the major shareholders will suffice. 
 

In the event that there is no equivalent 
document to the Quarterly Public Ownership 
Report / Top 100 Shareholders Report in the 
foreign country of the Prospective Bidder or the 
Consortium Member, such Prospective Bidder 
or Consortium Member may submit, in lieu 
thereof, the following: 
 
1. A sworn certification from the authorized 
representative or the Corporate Secretary that 
no such equivalent document is issued and 
available in such foreign country; and 
 
2. The audited financial report showing its 
major shareholders. 
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19 2/25/2013 Pricewaterhouse 
Coopers Cororate 
Finance Pte. Ltd. 

Could the PBAC confirm that if a consortium employs the services of a 
consultant to advise on the preparation of their bid for the Mactan 
Cebu Airport, and that if the consultant is advising the DOTC on a 
separate airport transaction, that this will not be deemed to be a 
conflict of interest and is permissible as per the procurement rules and 
processes? 
 

Please refer to the response to Query No. 50 in 
SBB No. 05-2013. 
 

20 3/4/2013 First Philippine 
Holdings 

1. Please confirm that for the circumstances in paragraphs (2), (3) 
and (4), there must also be a judicial pronouncement or arbitral 
award before they may be deemed to constitute "Unsatisfactory 
Performance". 

 
2. Will items (1) to (4) apply only to projects or contracts that are 

submitted to meet Technical Qualification requirements? 
 

3. With respect to item (4) on material violation of laws and/or 
regulations, we suggest that Prospective Bidders, Consortium 
Members and subcontractors be allowed to modify Annex QD 4A 
and Annex QD-4B to add a "to the best of knowledge" qualifier.  

  

Please refer to the response to Query No. 16 in 
SBB No. 06-2013. 
 

21 3/4/2013 First Philippine 
Holdings 

We suggest that the PBAC adopt that there will only be a Conflict of 
Interest involving an Affiliate if the Affiliate will be used by the 
Prospective Bidder or Consortium Member to satisfy qualification 
requirements. 
 
We suggest that Item V-04 (a) and (c) be amended as follows: 
 
“(a) a Prospective Bidder, any Consortium Member, or any of their 
Affiliates (of either a Prospective Bidder or of the Consortium Member) 
which are used to meet any of the Technical Qualification 
Requirements and Financial Qualification Requirements is a member of 
another Consortium, or an Affiliate of a Prospective Bidder or a 
member of another Consortium which are used to meet any of the 
Technical Qualification Requirements and Financial Qualification 
Requirements; 

The request is not granted. However, please be 
guided by the Amendment to the ITPB, Annex 
“B” of this document. 
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xxx 
 
(c) a Prospective Bidder, any Consortium Member, or any of their 
Affiliates (of either a Prospective Member or of the Consortium 
Member) which are used to meet any of the Technical Qualification 
Requirements and Financial Qualification Requirements has ownership 
interest of at least twenty percent (20%) in another Prospective Bidder, 
any Consortium Member of any other Prospective Bidder, or any of 
their Affiliates (of either Prospective Bidder or any of its Consortium 
Members) which are used to meet any of the Technical Qualification 
Requirements and  Financial Qualification Requirements." 
(Amendment underscored.) 
 

22 2/26/2013 SGV & Co. The specific wordings of the certificates required from the auditor 
found in Annex QD-11 and Annex QD-14 of the Instructions to 
Prospective Bidders are not consistent with the prescribed form and 
content of auditors' report under the above listed Philippine Standards 
on Auditing. Accordingly, we find it difficult to sign the certificate in its 
current form as doing so runs the risk of us violating the auditing 
standards that we are bound to comply with. 
 
Nevertheless, we understand that the DOTC has prescribed the 
template to facilitate the evaluation of the qualification of the 
prospective bidders. 
 
Accordingly, we propose that the DOTC allow us to issue the 
certificates in the form prescribed under Annex QD-11 and Annex QD-
14 with the following enhancements: 
 

(a) An Appendix will be attached to the certificate that will 
contain the following explanatory notes: 
(i) Statement of our role as the statutory auditors of the 

prospective bidder; 
(ii) Description of the context under which the prospective 

bidder has requested us to issue the certificate; 

We grant the request provided that the 
qualifications are reasonable and the 
certification being substantially in the format 
provided in the ITPB. 
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(iii) Description of the work we have performed on the 
financial statements of the prospective bidder, the 
auditing standards we have followed, and reference to 
the auditors' report we have issued and type of the 
report; 

(iv)  Description of the supplementary information indicated 
in the Certificate and our report thereon; 

(v) Description of the special purpose nature of our report 
and therefore restricted as to distribution and use; 

(vi)  Statement that we have no further responsibility to 
update our report for events and circumstances after the 
date of our report. 

(b) A statement will be added as a last paragraph in the certificate 
that will make reference to the explanatory notes presented 
in the Appendix. 

 

23 3/1/2013 Sycip Salazar 
Hernandez & 
Gatmaitan 

For the sake of consistency with the previous policy adopted by the 
DOTC and the PPP Center in another public bidding (LRT 1), we would 
like to seek a reconsideration of the interpretation made by the PBAC 
under Special Bid Bulletin No. 04- 2013 of Section V-04(c) of the ITPB, 
and consequently, limit the application of the conflict of interest 
provision under Section V-04(c) of the ITPB to entities which are  used 
to meet the  Technical or Financial Requirements of the ITPB. 
 
 

The request is not granted. However, please be 
guided by the Amendment to the ITPB, Annex 
“B” of this document. 
 

24 3/1/2013 Sycip Salazar 
Hernandez & 
Gatmaitan 

Upon discussion with external auditors, it would appear that they 
would have to make certain changes to the template Annex QD forms 
provided in the ITPB and include an explanatory note to the 
certification issued, pursuant to prescribed reporting standards under 
the Philippine Standards on Auditing. 
 
In this regard, please confirm our understanding that: 
 

(i) it would be acceptable to the PBAC if the certification 
from the Auditor would have, whether as an attachment 

Please refer to response to Query No. 19 in SBB 
No. 05-2013 
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to or part of the QD form itself, an explanatory note on 
the matters certified to by the Auditor; and 
 

(ii) any revision to or deviation from the template forms 
attached to the ITPB that is necessary in order for the 
external auditors to be in compliance with Philippine 
Standards on Auditing (or such other applicable auditing 
standard used by foreign companies) would not be 
considered as failure to comply with the terms, 
conditions and instructions of the Invitation Documents 
under Section V-02 or otherwise lead to the 
disqualification of the Prospective Bidder. 

 

25 3/1/2013 Sycip Salazar 
Hernandez & 
Gatmaitan 

Items 1 and 3 of Special Bid Bulletin No. 04-2013 provides that a team 
or separate architectural design and engineering firms can be 
proposed to meet the design and engineering qualification 
requirements, provided that each firm must individually demonstrate 
experience for at least one airport terminal having a capacity of 
handling at least five (5) million passengers per annum and with area 
of at least 20,000 square meters (sq. mt.) during the Eligible Period. In 
such a scenario, the Prospective Bidder can propose five teams of 
'Design and Engineering firms. 
 
In this regard, please confirm our understanding that: 
 

(i) if an architectural design firm and an engineering firm 
separately bring to the Project their field of specialty and 
the two entities do not have or have not entered into an 
agreement to pre-qualify as a team, a Prospective Bidder 
may submit the documents of the contractor-firms 
separately. In such a case, a Prospective Bidder may 
submit at least 5 contractors for each field of specialty 
(i.e., 5 for architectural design firms and 5 engineering 
firms). In any event, since a Prospective Bidder may 
propose up to five teams of Design and Engineering firms, 

We confirm your understanding. 
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and each team of Design and Engineering firm may 
consist of two separate architectural design and 
engineering firms, a Prospective Bidder may propose up 
to a total of 10 individual contractor-firms to meet the 
Design and Engineering requirements. 
 

(ii) in referring to "a team of separate architectural design 
and engineering firms", the two firms need not be 
exclusive with one another and the Prospective Bidder 
would still have the flexibility of choosing its preferred 
contractors from among all of the contractor-firms which 
it has nominated for pre-qualification; 

 
(iii) if two firms will pre-qualify as a team, the disqualification 

of one need not necessarily lead to the disqualification of 
the other for as long as there are other contractor-firms 
nominated by the Prospective Bidder that has pre-
qualified and would be able to team up with such other 
contractor-firm; 

 
(iv) if two firms will pre-qualify as a team, both firms can use 

the same experience in a project that they have 
previously undertaken together; and 

 
(v) if one firm meets both the architectural design and 

engineering qualification requirements, then there is no 
need for such firm to pre-qualify with another as a team. 

 

26 3/1/2013 Sycip Salazar 
Hernandez & 
Gatmaitan 

Considering that a number of prospective Design and Engineering 
Contractors have already executed the relevant Annex QD forms, and 
which forms are already in the process of notarization, legalization or 
consularization, please confirm that for purposes of pre-qualifying 
architectural design and engineering firms as a team, the Authorized 
Representative of the Prospective Bidder may submit a cover letter 
setting out which two (2) firms will be pre-qualifying as a team. 

We confirm your understanding. 
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27 3/1/2013 Sycip Salazar 
Hernandez & 
Gatmaitan 

Please confirm our understanding that for purposes of par. 9 of Annex 
QD-2, the Public Ownership and Top 100 Shareholders Reports would 
suffice without need of identifying the actual shareholders of shares 
held by a PCD Nominee. In any event, the beneficial owners of more 
than 5% of the shares of the listed company will be disclosed in par. 10 
of Annex Q1)-2. Furthermore, for purposes of filling up Item 9 of Annex 
QD-2, a Prospective Bidder/ Consortium Member can simply make a 
cross-reference to the latest Top 100 stockholders' and Public 
Ownership Report it submitted to the Philippine Stock Exchange.  
 

We confirm.  If the entity required to submit 
Annex QD-2 is not aware of the identity of all 
the persons/entities who are the actual owners 
of the shares held by a PCD Nominee, it may 
submit to the PBAC a sworn certification by the 
Corporate Secretary or authorized 
representative of such lack of knowledge, 
together with the Public Ownership and Top 
100 Shareholders Reports. Furthermore, for 
purposes of filling out Item 9 of Annex QD-2, a 
Prospective Bidder/ Consortium Member may 
specify the names stated in the latest Top 100 
stockholders' and Public Ownership Report it 
submitted to the Philippine Stock Exchange. 
 

28 3/1/2013 Sycip Salazar 
Hernandez & 
Gatmaitan 

We are advised that not all external or statutory auditors have a seal. 
In this regard, please confirm that for purposes of compliance with the 
QD forms, the logo, trade name or letterhead of the external auditor in 
the certificate would suffice to replace the requirement of affixing the 
seal of the audit firm. 

We confirm your understanding. 

29 3/1/2013 Quisumbing Torres 
on behalf of MAHB 

We refer to the requirement that a Consortium Member fulfilling the 
Development Experience under Section I-09(2)(a) should hold "at least 
thirty-three and one-third percent ( 33 1/3%) interest in the 
Consortium or such Consortium Member's Affiliate. Please clarify this 
equity requirement vis-a-vis the 33% equity cap imposed on an Airline-
Related Entity. May a Consortium Member (or its Affiliate) that is an 
Airline-Related Entity fulfill the Development Experience requirement? 
 

Under the present restriction of an Airline 
Related Entity to hold no more than 33% of the 
total equity, an Airline Related Entity would not 
be able to fulfill the Development Experience 
Requirement. 
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30 3/1/2013 Quisumbing Torres 
on behalf of MAHB 

We refer to the Development Experience under Section I-09(2)(a) and 
(ii) the Design and Engineering Experience under Section I- 09(2)(b).  
 
Please confirm whether: 
 

(i) a Consortium Member (or its Affiliate) which is the owner of 
the Eligible Projects may fulfill the Development Experience 
requirement; and 
 

(ii) a Consortium Member (or its Affiliate) which is the owner of 
the relevant projects for airport terminal facilities and 
associated infrastructure may fulfill the Design and 
Engineering Experience requirement 

 

(i) The details provided by the querist are not 
sufficient to respond to this query. The 
querist is requested to undertake its own 
due diligence of the requirement. However, 
as a guidance, Annex QD-11 provides for a 
provision when the Prospective Bidder is the 
owner of an Eligible Project 

 
(ii) The details provided by the querist are not 

sufficient to respond to this query. The 
querist is requested to undertake its own 
due diligence of the requirement. However, 
as a guidance, mere ownership of a project 
would not qualify the entity to have fulfilled 
the required experience. The entity fulfilling 
the Design and Engineering Experience 
needs to demonstrate that it had 
satisfactorily undertaken detailed 
architectural design and engineering, 
including airport planning and construction 
planning and phasing in implementing 
projects, for airport terminal facilities and 
associated infrastructure in accordance with 
the applicable rules, ordinances, standards 
and recommended practices. 

 

31 3/1/2013 Quisumbing Torres 
on behalf of MAHB 

We refer to the requirement under Section 11 (3) and Annex QD-3 
regarding the submission by a foreign entity of certified true copies of 
its equivalent documents of the Certificate of Incorporation, Articles of 
Incorporation and By-laws (collectively, Incorporation Documents) 
submitted to and acknowledged by the appropriate government 
agency in the foreign country where the foreign entity was registered 
for recognition or creation of its juridical personality of capacity. 
 
Section II (3) provides that "All certifications by the entity's corporate 

We confirm. Please be guided that the copies of 
the incorporation documents are the copies of 
such documents stamped received by the 
relevant government agency in such foreign 
country, if applicable. 
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secretary or an authorized representative must be under oath and 
notarized. If the certification is issued or notarized outside the 
Philippines, it must be authenticated before a Philippine consular 
official at the Philippine consulate nearest the place of issue.“ 
 
Please confirm that, similar to paragraph II .2(ii), the certification that 
the equivalent documents of the Incorporation Documents are true 
copies may be issued either by:  
 
- the entity's corporate secretary or authorized representative, 
provided that such certification is made under oath and notarized; or 
by a notary public; and  
 
- in either case, if the certification is executed or notarized outside the 
Philippines, authenticated before a Philippine consular official at the 
Philippine consulate nearest the place of issue 
 

32 3/1/2013 Quisumbing Torres 
on behalf of MAHB 

1. Who/what constitutes an "Auditor" or 'external auditor' for 
matters that are outside the mandate of a financial auditor.  
 

2. If a financial auditor will certify facts outside their usual 
mandate (i.e. verification of non-financial data), the 
"appropriate basis" may be the Approved Standards on 
Related Services in Malaysia, ISRS 4400 Engagement to 
Perform Agreed-Upon Procedures Regarding Financial 
Information. 

 

1. In common financial parlance, an 
auditor may be an entity or an 
individual who checks the accuracy of 
business records. 
 

2. Please refer to response to query 
number 19 in SBB No. 05-2013. 
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33 3/1/2013 Quisumbing Torres 
on behalf of MAHB 

In a case where the foreign entity is not required to submit its AFS to 
the government agency equivalent to the BIR but rather to another 
government agency that is mandated to incorporate companies and 
regulate businesses to ensure compliance with business registration 
and corporate legislation, please confirm that the AFS acknowledged 
received by the latter government agency will be acceptable.  
 
Also, please confirm that the corporate secretary or authorized 
representative of the foreign entity can issue the certification that a 
copy AFS (acknowledged received by the relevant government agency) 
is a true copy. If not, please clarify who will certify such copy of the 
AFS. 
 

We confirm. In case where the foreign entity is 
not required to submit its AFS to the 
government agency equivalent to the BIR but 
to another government agency that is 
mandated to incorporate companies and 
regulate businesses to ensure compliance with 
business registration and corporate legislation, 
the PBAC will accept the AFS 
acknowledged/received by the latter 
government agency.  
 
Furthermore, we confirm that the corporate 
secretary or authorized representative of the 
foreign entity can issue the certification that a 
copy AFS (acknowledged received by the 
relevant government agency) is a true copy. 
 

34 3/1/2013 Quisumbing Torres 
on behalf of MAHB 

Please confirm our understanding that foreign individuals may be 
appointed as (1) the authorized representative of a Consortium 
Member, and (2) the authorized representative of the Lead Member of 
a Consortium. 
 

We confirm your understanding. 

35 3/4/2013 Aboitiz Land Section V-04 (c) of the ITPB does not apply where the ownership 
interest of an Affiliate of a Prospective Bidder or of a Consortium 
Member in an Affiliate of another Prospective Bidder or of a 
Consortium Member of another Prospective Bidder does not relate to 
the Project. 
 

The request is not granted. However, please be 
guided by the Amendment to the ITPB, Annex 
“B” of this document. 
 

36 3/4/2013 Aboitiz Land Section V-04(d) of the ITPB does not apply where a person that sits as 
director of a Prospective Bidder, any Consortium Member or any of 
their Affiliates is also merely an independent director of another 
Prospective Bidder, any Consortium Member or any of their Affiliates.  
 

The position in the ITPB is reiterated. However, 
please note that Section V-04 (d) shall only 
apply if the common director is directly 
involved in the bidding process for another 
Prospective Bidder. We have provided guidance 
as to what would constitute direct involvement 
in our response to Query No. 4 in SBB No. 06-
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2013. 
  

37 3/4/2013 Aboitiz Land Our understanding is that the restriction against "some Consortium 
Members" forming a holding company or subsidiary applies beginning 
on the Qualification Documents Submission Date, but does not apply 
to their formation of a holding company or subsidiary prior to this 
date. We request your confirmation that our understanding is correct. 
 

We confirm that the restriction against the 
formation of the holding company by some but 
not all Consortium Members applies if the 
holding company will be formed after the 
Qualification Documents Submission Date. 
Please note that if the holding company is 
formed prior to the Qualification Documents 
Submission Date, the holding company itself 
will be consider as a consortium member and 
all the provisions in the ITPB related to 
Affiliates and Control would apply to that 
company including for the purpose of 
determining the technical experience / 
qualification. 
 

38 3/4/2013 Aboitiz Land The revised QD-4A and QD-4B attached to SBB 06-2013 adopted the 
original forms' limiting the foreign blacklist to the blacklist "posted in 
the World Bank website (www.worldbank.orgidebarr)." We note, 
however, that this had already been amended by SBB 02-2013, which 
expanded this by replacing the sole reference to the World Bank 
website list with "in the Debarred and Cross-Debarred Firms & 
Individual list of major international financial institutions such as the 
World Bank, the European Bank of Reconstruction and Development, 
Asian Development Bank, Inter-American Development Bank and 
African Development Bank Group".  
 
For this reason, we request clarification whether pars. (b) and 2 of QD-
4A and par. 2 of QD-4B should mention only the World Bank fist or the 
expanded list in SBB 02-2013.  
 

We confirm. The revised QD-4A and QD-4B to 
be submitted must incorporate the revisions in 
SBB No. 06-2013, with regard to the insertion 
of the qualifier "to the best of my knowledge" 
and the revisions in SBB No. 02-2013, with 
regard to the expansion of the blacklist. 
 



  ANNEX A 
 

39 3/4/2013 GMR Infrastructure We understand, as per PCAB, the requirement to obtain Large B 
Classification/License Category AAA is track record of completion of 
single contract with a value of more than 150 mn PHP. Since in India, 
there is no such system of providing licenses to construction 
companies, kindly confirm would it be sufficient if such Indian 
subcontractor provides proof for completion of single contract with a 
value of more than 150 mn PHP by way of a certificate from Statutory 
auditor and secures licenses from PCAB in the event of winning the 
bid? 
 

We confirm. In case there is no equivalent to 
PCAB in the country of the foreign entity, such 
entity may submit: 
 

1. A sworn certification from the 
Corporate Secretary or the authorized 
representative that there is no 
equivalent agency to PCAB in such 
foreign country; and 

2. A certificate from the statutory auditor 
certifying that such firm meets the 
qualifications for securing a Large B 
Classification/License Category AAA, as 
specified by PCAB. 

 

40 2/14/2013 GMR Infrastructure A Prospective Bidder, any Consortium Member, or any of their 
Affiliates (of either a Prospective Bidder or of the Consortium Member) 
has ownership interest of at least twenty percent (20%) in any other 
Prospective Bidder, any Consortium Member of any other Prospective 
Bidder, or any of their Affiliates (of either the other Prospective Bidder 
or any of its Consortium Members). 
 
Many local Philippines Companies seem to have such cross holdings 
and therefore, we request DOTC to change the ownership interest 
from 20% to at least 33.33% since the real influence of such ownership 
applies beyond this level.  

The request is granted. Please refer to the 
Amendment to the ITPB, Annex “B” of this 
document. 
 

41 2/8/2013 Megawide 
Engineering 

Furthermore, must one (1) Construction Contractor possess all three 
(3) requirements: PCAB License, ISO Certification 9001 and 14001 or 
can one (1) Construction Contractor possess the PCAB License and ISO 
Certification 9001 while another nominated Construction Contractor 
possess the ISO Certification 14001? 
 

Proposed Construction Contractor needs to 
possess the PCAB license or equivalent and 
both the ISO 9001 and ISO 14001 Certification.  
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AMENDMENT TO THE INSTRUCTIONS TO PROSPECTIVE BIDDERS 

 

 Section Original Provision Amended Provision 

1 Section V-04 (c) A Prospective Bidder, any Consortium Member, or any of 
their Affiliates (of either a Prospective Bidder or of the 
Consortium Member) has ownership interest of at least 
twenty percent (20%) in any other Prospective Bidder, any 
Consortium Member of any other Prospective Bidder, or 
any of their Affiliates (of either the other Prospective 
Bidder or any of its Consortium Members); 
 

A Prospective Bidder, any Consortium Member, or any of 
their Affiliates (of either a Prospective Bidder or of the 
Consortium Member) has ownership interest of at least thirty 
three and one third percent (33 1/3%) in any other 
Prospective Bidder, any Consortium Member of any other 
Prospective Bidder, or any of their Affiliates (of either the 
other Prospective Bidder or any of its Consortium Members); 
 

2 Section V-04 (c) “Prospective Bidders and Consortium Members (if the 
Prospective Bidder is a Consortium), including their 
Affiliates, must not have any Conflict of Interest. Without 
limiting the generality of what would constitute a Conflict 
of Interest, any of the following will be considered a 
Conflict of Interest: 
 
f) a Prospective Bidder, any of its Consortium Members, 
any of its proposed Subcontractors, or any Affiliate of any 
of these entities, engages any legal, financial, or technical 
adviser of the DOTC or the MCIAA in relation to the 
Project, or anyone who is or was an employee of the 
DOTC or the MCIAA less than one (1) year before his or 
her engagement by the Prospective Bidder, any of its 
Consortium Members, any of its proposed Subcontractors, 
or any Affiliate of any of these entities.” 

f) “A Prospective Bidder, any of its Consortium Members, any 
of its proposed Subcontracts, or any Affiliate of any of these 
entities, engages in relation to the Bidding Process on the 
Project any legal, financial, or technical adviser of the DOTC 
or the MCIAA on the Project, or anyone who is or was an 
employee of the DOTC or the MCIAA less than one (1) year 
before his or her engagement by the Prospective Bidder, any 
of its Consortium Member, any of its proposed 
Subcontractors, or any Affiliate of any of these.” 



 ANNEX C 
 

 
CLARIFICATION TO THE INSTRUCTIONS TO PROSPECTIVE BIDDERS 

 

 Section Clarification 

1 Annex QD-4A 
and Annex QD-
4B 

Annex QD-4A/4B that has already been executed on a date after the issuance of SBB 02-2013 on 1 February 2013 but 
prior to the issuance of SBB 06-2013 on 1 March 2013 shall be deemed in substantial compliance of the ITBP and be 
accepted by the PBAC. 
 

 


